
CALHOUN COUNTY

PROCEEDINGS OF THE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

October 20, 2005

The Regular Session of the Calhoun County Board of Commissioners convened at 7:03 p.m. in the
Commissioners' Meeting Room, County Building, Marshall, Michigan.

Roll call:  Present:  Comrs. Bolger, Miller, Segal, Solis, Strowbridge and Todd.  Temporarily Excused: Comr.
Moore (Arrived at 7:20 p.m.).

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

A Moment of Personal Prayer was observed; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, led by Comr. Todd.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA/ADDENDUM:

“Motion by Comr. Segal, supported by Comr. Todd, adopt the following:  Resolved by the
Calhoun County Board of Commissioners approve the October 20, 2005 agenda and addendum,
as amended, to include Item 8. (1) -- United Way Update and Kiss the Pig Contest Winner.”

Voice Vote: Motion CARRIED

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

“Motion by Comr. Bolger, supported by Comr. Segal, adopt the following: Resolved by the
Calhoun County Board of Commissioners approve the October 6, 2005 minutes, with correction
to reflect that Commissioner Solis presented the National Business Women’s Week
Proclamation and proposed the adoption of Resolution 176-2005.”

Voice Vote: Motion CARRIED

CITIZENS’ TIME:

Ms. Marjorie Thompson, Calhoun County resident, read the following statement:

“The county faces tough economic times with continually shrinking funds in which to balance
the budget and operate at a level that best serves the citizens of Calhoun County.”

“I am concerned about one possible way in which the county’s budget could be contemplated
to bring it in line with these constraints.  It is my understanding that layoff of employees that

221



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

serve the constituents of our county could be one resort, while hopefully a last resort.  The
employees and I, while having a vested interest in these outcomes, are deeply concerned.  If my
understanding is invalid, it would be good if you could educate me tonight, as rumors would be
a poor way to negotiate contracts with the employees.”

“The county’s mission statement deals directly to the service and expectations of the
constituents, “Building a  Better County Through Responsive Leadership.”  Responsive
leadership should be able to strive for a better scenario than laying off employees who serve
every day, whom pride themselves on work well done, who have given in the past directly with
benefits and wages, or taken on more responsibility with no increase in pay.”

“Section 12 of your agenda of this date deals directly with compensation and impacts the
finances of the county.  Elected officials’ salary increases would seem incomprehensible if
layoffs were to occur within the county.”

“Our county needs to set a new direction in order to balance its finances.  Responsive leadership
would search for ways possible to stop county services from being affected.  If department
leadership had a vested interest in examining each detail of their budget, maybe then could better
budget leadership be achieved.  Vested interest for elected officials would be that their
constituents would find it unfavorable for them to accept an increase at the cost of jobs or
services.  Department leadership would be more vested in its outcome if before any layoffs
occurred, salaried employees would be looking at a three to five percent rollback in their salary. 
Vested equality can manage to find the “fat” within the budget and save jobs, services and
quality, as budgets are never favorably balanced over the backs of its employees.”

“I am asking you here tonight to consider this statement and set an example to corporations and
organizations that responsive leadership can set a new path.”

Mr. Gardy Berezonsky, Marengo Township resident, proposed that if the salary increase for elected officials
is approved, that the increase not be added to the officials’ base salary.

ELECTED/APPOINTED COUNTY OFFICIALS’ COMMENTS:

Prosecutor John Hallacy advised that when he submitted the Office’s 2006 budget he did not include a salary
increase for himself and his Chief Assistant, and shall decline the increase if approved.

Sheriff Allen Byam advised that it is his intention to also decline the increase.

222



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS:

United Way Update

Assistant County Administrator Wendee Woods reported that the county is having a successful United Way
campaign this year, with 90 percent of the county’s $20,000 goal already collected.  Ms. Woods credited much
of campaign’s success to Michelle Hill.

Ms. Woods advised that this afternoon the results of the Kiss a Pig Contest were reviewed, and Mr. Purcell is
the winner and shall kiss the pig tonight.  Ms. Woods reported that the Contest resulted in $726 in contributions.

County Administrator/Controller Greg Purcell kissed Penny the Pig and received a trophy.

Calhoun County Youth Council Member Introductions

Res. 178-2005

“Motion by Comr. Segal, supported by Comr. Bolger, adopt the following: Resolved by the
Calhoun County Board of Commissioners table Calhoun County Youth Council Member
Introductions until a future Board meeting.”

Voice Vote: Motion CARRIED

Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation

Chairman Miller read and presented the following proclamation to Prosecutor Hallacy.

Res. 179-2005

“Motion by Comr. Segal, supported by Comr. Bolger, resolved by the Calhoun County Board
of Commissioners approve the following proclamation:

WHEREAS, the month of October 2005 has been designated as Domestic Violence
Awareness Month; and

WHEREAS, in the United States a woman is beaten every 15 seconds; and

WHEREAS, in 2004, Calhoun County Law Enforcement Agencies responded to 3,327
calls for service involving Domestic Violence; and

223



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

WHEREAS, in 2004, 909 felony and misdemeanor arrest warrants involving Domestic
Violence were issued by the Calhoun County Prosecutor’s Office; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Calhoun County Board of
Commissioners that October 2005 is recognized as Domestic Violence Awareness
Month in Calhoun County. The Calhoun County Board of Commissioners thank and
recognize those Victims of Domestic Violence, the staff and volunteers at S.A.F.E. Place
Domestic Violence Shelter, members of the Calhoun County Domestic Violence
Coordinating Council, the Calhoun County Prosecutor’s Office, and Law Enforcement
and Service Agencies, who, through their cooperative effort in coordinating the events
of Domestic Violence Awareness Month have helped to bring attention to the issues
surrounding domestic violence, to educate our communities regarding domestic violence
and to prevent the occurrence of domestic violence.”

Voice Vote: Motion CARRIED

Prosecutor Hallacy thanked the Board and advised that this year is the third year of the campaign to make the
elected officials around the county aware of the problem and to educate the community.  Prosecutor Hallacy
pointed out that the vast amount of domestic violence occurrences are not reported and that the number one
audience of domestic violence is the children.  Prosecutor Hallacy thanked the Sheriff and Sheriff Department
staff for all that they do.

Summit Pointe Information Regarding the Contract with the Michigan Department of Community
Health

Summit Pointe Chief Executive Officer Ervin Brinker advised that Summit Pointe is one of eighteen pre-bid
inpatient health plan administrators in the state.  Mr. Brinker stated that Summit Pointe has four partners; Barry,
Branch, Van Buren and Berrien Counties, and is responsible for $65 Million for all mental health, substance
abuse medicaid services for the five counties.

Mr. Brinker continued that of the $65 Million, $1.5 Million is contracted by Summit Pointe to three separate
coordinating agencies to provide substance abuse services for people with Medicaid.  Mr. Brinker advised that
Summit Pointe has not been able to be in compliance with the Medicaid contract with the Michigan Department
of Community Health, including the federal waiver, and the state has assumed the responsibility.  Mr. Brinker
advised that Summit Pointe cannot continue with the contract with the Mid-South Coordinating Agency and
this coming January will assume direct responsibility for contracting with the providers for Calhoun County
and Berrien Counties.  Mr. Brinker stated that if the problem is not resolved, the funding is in jeopardy.

Mr. Brinker further advised that in other issues where the Mid-South Substance Abuse Commission has been
designated as the coordinating agency, he shall be back before the Board to have the county officially terminate
that designation and designate Summit Pointe as the coordinating agency.

224



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

Minority Businesses Month Proclamation

Comr. Todd read the following proclamation.

Res. 180-2005

“Motion by Comr. Bolger, supported by Comr. Segal, resolved by the Calhoun County
Board of Commissioners approve the following proclamation:

WHEREAS, minority businesses serve their communities, their states and their nation
in professional, civic, economic and cultural capacities; and

WHEREAS, a survey of minority business ownership conducted by the United States
Department of Commerce showed entrepreneurship up among all minorities; 45
percent among African-Americans, 31 percent among Hispanics, 20 percent among
Asians and 28 percent among women; and 

WHEREAS, from 2002 to 2007 minority purchasing power in the United States is
projected to grow by 40 percent, to $1.4 Trillion.

THEREFORE, WE, the Calhoun County Board of Commissioners, do hereby proclaim
October 2005

MINORITY BUSINESSES MONTH

in Calhoun County and salute minority businesses for their contributions to our local
and national economy.”

Voice Vote: Motion CARRIED

CONSENT AGENDA:

Res. 181-2005

“Motion by Comr. Moore, supported by Comr. Segal,  adopt the following:  Resolved by

225



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

the Calhoun County Board of Commissioners approve the following October 20, 2005 Consent
Agenda as presented:

                                                                                        
A. Petitions, Communications, Reports:

(1) Notice of a public hearing scheduled for October 10, 2005
regarding granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate to
Jorgensen Steel Machining & Fabrication, Inc. received from
Tekonsha Village.  (Received and placed on file, with a copy
remitted to Equalization Director Richard Gruber)

(2) Resolutions received from Crawford, Shiawassee, Menominee, St.
Clair and Livingston Counties opposing House Bill No. 5124
{Access to All Electronic Records}.  (Referred to the Legislative
Liaisons)

(3) Resolution received from Antrim County opposing the United
States Supreme Court decision regarding the power of eminent
domain for use for private development for profit.  (Referred to
the Legislative Liaisons)

(4) Notice of a public hearing scheduled for October 18, 2005
regarding granting an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District
No. 1 to Henkel Chrysler Jeep; and Industrial Facilities Exemption
Certificates to TRMI, Inc., Advanced Special Tools, and Advanced
Plastic Manufacturing received from Battle Creek City.  (Received
and placed on file, with copies remitted to Equalization Director
Richard Gruber)

(5) Calhoun County Youth Council Bylaws Amendment

B. Resolutions:

(1) Calhoun County Economic Development Corporation Appointments
(Terms Expire December 31, 2010)

{a} Karl Dehn
{b} Richard Frantz
{c} Joe Garcia

(2) Department of Human Services Board Appointment

226



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

{a} Stanley Sims -- Term Expires October 31, 2008"

Voice Vote: Motion CARRIED

SPECIAL COMMITTEE/WORKSHOP/BOARD REPORTS:

Purchasing Policy Review Workshop

Workshop Chairman Miller reported that the Workshop just finished its assignment and anticipates presenting
its report at the November 3 Board Meeting.

PETITIONS AND NEW BUSINESS:

County Administrator/Controller’s Report

Elected Officials’ 2006 Salary Increase

Mr. Purcell stated that the proposed increase is for one percent and advised that Prosecutor Hallacy mentioned 
at the first budget meeting that he would decline the increase and tonight the Sheriff advised that he shall also
decline any increase.

Mr. Purcell recommended approval of the increase pointing out that administration shall be requesting that the
employees pay a ten percent co-payment towards their health insurance.

Res. 182-2005

“Motion by Comr. Bolger, supported by Comr. Segal, resolved by the Calhoun County Board
of Commissioners adopt the following:

WHEREAS, the 2006 recommended Calhoun County budget shall provide funding for salary
increases for elected officials; and

WHEREAS, the 2006 budget that shall be recommended by the County
Administrator/Controller, shall provide sufficient funding for a raise equivalent to 1% for all
elected officials (excluding Board of Commissioners).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Calhoun County Board of Commissioners
approve a one (1) percent salary increase for all elected officials (excluding Board of
Commissioners) effective the first full pay period of 2006.”

Comr. Bolger inquired whether the increase is only for five individuals.  Mr. Purcell responded that the increase

227



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

also affects their deputies’ salary.

Chairman Miller inquired regarding the time frame for approving the salary increase.  Mr. Purcell responded
that the salary increase has to be determined by the first of November.  Mr. Purcell stated that the other elected
officials shall still have the opportunity to also decline their increase, and recommended the increase be
approved to allow the officials to make the decision for themselves.

Chairman Miller advised that he shall reluctantly vote in favor of the increase because of the timing of the
matter, however, that he would encourage the other officials to follow the example of the Prosecutor and the
Sheriff.

Roll call vote: Yes - 6 (Comrs. Miller, Moore, Segal, Strowbridge, Todd and Bolger)
No  - 1 (Comr. Solis)
Motion CARRIED

Commissioners’ 2006 Salary Amendment

Mr. Purcell stated that because a sitting Commission cannot approve a salary increase for themselves, a salary
increase of 2.5 percent for 2005 and 2006 was approved in 2004.  Mr. Purcell advised that the resolution
presented would amend Resolution 188-2004 whereby the salary increase for Board of Commissioners would
be zero for 2006.

Mr. Purcell stated that he has discussed the issue with the 2006 Budget Committee and Board members and
believes eliminating the Commission’s salary increase provides an example for everyone.  Mr. Purcell stated
that he believes, however, that it is necessary to increase the Commission members’ salary to not fall too far
behind whereby a huge increase is required in the future.

Res. 183-2005

“Motion by Comr. Bolger, supported by Comr. Segal, adopt the following: Resolved by the
Calhoun County Board of Commissioners amend Resolution 188-2004, rescinding the 2.5
percent salary increase for county commissioners for the fiscal year of 2006.”

Roll call vote: Yes - 7 Motion CARRIED Unanimously

September 2005 Financial Statements

Finance Director James Latham reported that as the county completes three-quarters of the fiscal year the
financial condition is “on track” with projections.  Mr. Latham pointed out, however, that the condition is a
result of budget amendments of $400,000 to balance the budget for the remaining portion of 2005.  Mr. Latham
advised that the revenue is as anticipated and expenditures are at 74 percent expended.

228



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

Mr. Latham reported that jail bed rental revenue and Child Care Fund expenses are on the watch list.  Mr.
Latham advised that Clerk’s fees has been taken off the list as there has been some improvement.

FY 2005-2006 Juvenile Justice Prosecution/Diversion Program Agreement

Mr. Purcell advised that the Byrne grant in the amount of $141,000 requires a General Fund match of $70,500. 
Mr. Purcell further advised that the Program has a position vacancy which the Prosecutor is requesting be filled.

Prosecutor Hallacy stated that the agreement is the third of a four year grant and that each year the local match
amount increases.  Prosecutor Hallacy pointed out that the grant was pursued as a result of a strategic planning
meeting to support the Prosecutor’s Office in diverting juveniles from the juvenile justice system to community-
based programs with the ultimate goal of reducing recidivism and preventing juveniles from becoming adult
offenders.  Prosecutor Hallacy advised that the largest number of juveniles coming into the system are first-time
offenders, and that with the Program the Office has been able to divert hundreds of juveniles.

Prosecutor Hallacy advised that the grant provides funds for one Assistant Prosecuting Attorney (A.P.A) and
one support staff position.  Prosecutor Hallacy stated that the A.P.A. position is presently vacant.  Prosecutor
Hallacy inquired whether the grant’s match is exempt from the budget process or whether it is “on the table”
for cuts, advising that he will not fill the vacant position for only three months.

Res. 184-2005

“Motion by Comr. Strowbridge, supported by Comr. Solis, adopt the following: Resolved by the
Calhoun County Board of Commissioners approve the FY 2005-2006 Juvenile Justice
Prosecution/Diversion Program Grant Agreement between the Michigan Department of
Community Health and the County of Calhoun for the period of October 1, 2005 through
September 30, 2006 in the amount of $141,000.”

Comr. Strowbridge stated that three years ago he worked with Prosecutor Hallacy and was a strong supporter
of the Program and still is.  Comr. Strowbridge stated that he supports the filling of the A.P.A. position, pointing
out that it is still more cost effective for the county to divert the juveniles.

Comr. Segal voiced concern with receiving the agreement on the addendum affording no chance for review. 
 Comr. Segal advised that the grant match must be considered in the “mix” of the Prosecutor’s entire budget,
and inquired whether the local match for the remainder of 2005 can be determined within the Prosecutor’s
budget.  
Comr. Solis stated that although he has heard from the Prosecutor and Commissioner Strowbridge that the
Program is good, he would be more comfortable seeing something that shows the progress that has been made. 
Comr. Solis concurred with Commissioner Segal, that the grant match must stay within the mix of the
Prosecutor’s budget for next year.

Prosecutor Hallacy advised that if the grant match must be considered in the mix, it is doubtful the Program

229



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

shall continue.

Comr. Todd inquired whether the Prosecutor has some record of the individuals that have been through the
Program; i.e., responses from the families, schools, stating that the Program has been demonstrated through the
years.  Prosecutor Hallacy responded Yes, advising that two of the letters were to the editor from the kids that
went through the Program advising how the Program has changed their lives and their relationship with their
parents.  Prosecutor Hallacy offered to provide a copy of the letters.

Comr. Segal inquired when the agreement must be approved.  Prosecutor Hallacy advised that the agreement
commenced October 1, however, was just received.  Comr. Segal inquired whether the agreement could be
placed upon the November 3 Board agenda.  Prosecutor Hallacy responded that the support staff position is
waiting to know whether the position shall continue.

Chairman Miller stated that if the Board approves the agreement this evening, it would ensure the position
through 2005; and that if the match amount for the position were unable to survive, there could be separate
action taken after the first of the year.  Prosecutor Hallacy stated that if it is determined that the grant match
cannot survive for 2006, the positions shall be eliminated, the funds returned, and a letter remitted to the funder
to stop the grant.

Comr. Segal inquired whether the Prosecutor’s current budget has sufficient funds to pay the one-third local
match for 2005.  Prosecutor Hallacy responded “That is a good question,” pointing out that the position vacancy
monies return to the General Fund rather than remain within the Office budget.  Mr. Latham stated that he
believes the Prosecutor’s budget would have the money for the match for the remainder of 2005.

Mr. Latham advised that the allowances for vacancies was intended to be a topic for discussion.

Comr. Moore inquired should the Board approve the agreement through the remainder of 2005, whether it
would make sense to hire another A.P.A. for two months.  Prosecutor Hallacy responded No.  Comr. Moore
inquired whether the clerical position can continue in the Program without an A.P.A.  Prosecutor Hallacy
responded Yes.  Comr. Moore stated that it seems to him that the Board would not lose anything by approving
the agreement tonight, but not filling the A.P.A. position this year.

Chairman Miller inquired whether there is another A.P.A. fulfilling the responsibilities of the Program under
the grant.  Prosecutor Hallacy responded that there are only two attorneys in the Family Division, and there has
been a recommendation from the American Bar Association that attorneys not handle more than 120 cases.

Chairman Miller advised Prosecutor Hallacy that the agreement should have been provided to the Board in
advance of the meeting rather than be presented on the addendum, and stated that he hopes in the future that
the Board will receive the information sooner.

Roll call vote: Yes - 7 Motion CARRIED Unanimously

230



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

CITIZENS’ TIME:

President of Local 1294, Rick Ozzello, representing two of the bargaining units in the court, commended the
Board for voting down their salary increase for 2006, stating that hopefully the people below them shall do the
same.  Mr. Ozzello stated that the employees/unions are hearing shortened work days and layoffs, and that
hopefully middle management shall not receive raises.

U.A.W. Chairman of the Thirty-Seventh Circuit Court Division Michael Brown echoed the comments of Mr.
Ozzello regarding salary increases, and expressed the union/employees’ concern regarding potential layoffs.

Mr. Berezonsky advised that last Friday he came to the County Building for a budget meeting scheduled for
8:30 a.m., and that after being informed that the meeting would commence at 9:00 a.m., when he started to go
in for the meeting Mr. Latham advised him that Mr. Purcell had instructed him that he could not attend the
meeting.  Mr. Berezonsky stated that he was quite disturbed that perhaps there was something “shady” going
on at the meeting since he had not been allowed to attend.

Mr. Berezonsky pointed out that the county has already had to settle an Open Meetings Act violation this year,
and advised that he has not yet decided whether he shall take action on the violation.

Chairman Miller advised Mr. Berezonsky that normally he does not respond to citizens’ comments, however,
that he understands his frustration.  Chairman Miller stated that he would suggest that nothing shady was going
on at the county budget meeting.  Chairman Miller advised that if no more than three Commissioners are in the
meeting room, there is no violation of the Open Meetings Act.

Mr. Berezonsky advised that in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, sub-committees are open to the public.

Mr. Jerry Keller, Battle Creek resident, commented that he was a union man and that everyone has to take a
“hit.”  Mr. Keller stated that the Board must be fiscally responsible and that it is time for administration to live
within the revenue coming into the county.

COMMISSIONERS’ TIME:

Comr. Segal announced that tomorrow is National Mammography Day and urged women to get screened.

Comr. Bolger congratulated the Prosecutor for receiving an award from Mothers Against Drunk Drivers
(M.A.D.D.) for savings lives.  Prosecutor Hallacy advised that in July he received one of the two life saver
awards presented to prosecutors within the State of Michigan.  Prosecutor Hallacy advised that he was
nominated by Ms. Susan Horsfall of the Substance Abuse Council of Greater Battle Creek.

Chairman Miller addressed the Citizens Exposing the Truth About Casinos’ (C.E.T.A.C.) comments on the
television and radio stations regarding the environmental impact statement.  Chairman Miller advised that he 

231



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

has gone on record as stating that he believes the environmental impact statement was sound, done in good faith
and with due diligence.  Chairman Miller stated that there is a compact, the tribe has been federally recognized,
and at the end of the day there is not a lot that anyone can do about the proposed casino.  Chairman Miller stated
that he is not fond of gambling, however, that it is his personal position; but that anytime that someone makes
outrageous and outlandish statements about the citizens in his district; e.g., the City of Battle Creek, he shall
stand up and say something.

Chairman Miller stated that C.E.T.A.C. claimed that the casino would not be able to hire local employees,
quoting the following statements from a newspaper article:

“... In addition to an insufficient number of trained or trainable potential employees, there is an
unfortunate but chronic problem, with a significant portion of the unemployed failing to pass
pre-employment or on-the-job drug screenings.  Many unemployed lack high school graduation
certificates or G.E.D.s and many have never developed a work ethic that makes them reliable
employees.  Many struggle with available, affordable day care.  Many have some kind of
learning disability.”

Chairman Miller stated that there are plenty of unemployed people in his community, district, City and they are
in no way, shape or form uneducated, lacking work ethics or suffering from a learning disability.  They are
unemployed because the economy is difficult and jobs are hard to come by.

Chairman Miller stated that the people in question advised that they in part did not write the report and do not
remember where the statistics came from.  Chairman Miller stated that he believes the comments are
irresponsible and irrational; and that if someone is going to say something about people, they should be able
to “back it up.”

CLAIMS PAYABLE LISTINGS:

Res. 185-2005

“Motion by Comr. Moore, supported by Comr. Segal, adopt the following:  Resolved by the
Calhoun County Board of Commissioners approve payment of the list of claims against the
county in the total amount of $5,908,924.72 for the week of October 4, 2005; further, approve
payment of the list of claims against the county in the total amount of $409,453.14 for the week
of October 11, 2005.”

Roll call vote: Yes - 7 Motion CARRIED Unanimously

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

232



Board of Commissioners
October 20, 2005

Prosecutor Hallacy announced that tomorrow at 7:00 a.m. at the Calhoun County Technical Center the
Substance Abuse Council shall be having their annual breakfast.  Prosecutor Hallacy stated that the event is a
great opportunity to view the work being done by the volunteers to address substance abuse.

Prosecutor Hallacy further announced that October 27 from 5:00 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. at the St. Philip Tiger Room
is the Devil’s Night Celebration that the Advocates host each year.

Comr. Bolger announced that the Scare Crow Festival is continuing in Marshall and that on Saturday, October
22, is Oktoberfest in downtown Marshall from 12:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.  Comr. Bolger continued that on
October 28 and 29 is the Haunted River Walk and invited everyone to attend the events.

Comr. Todd announced that October 28 at the McCamly Plaza is the 77th Annual N.A.A.C.P. Freedom Fund
Dinner commencing at 7:00 p.m.  Comr. Todd advised that the cost for tickets is $75.

RECESS:

The meeting recessed at 8:27 p.m. at the call of the Chair.

mlb

233


